
5/7/2025 2025-107/7-7
2225967FAA (ATM ZME ARTCC, AAS-1), Airport Manager, Cape Girardeau

Regional Airport (CGI), MO

FAA (Director of Air Traffic Operations ESA South, AVP-1, AVP-200, AFS-260, AFS
-200), A4A, ALPA, AOPA, APA, ASAP, ATSAP, ATSG, CAPA, IATA, ICAO, ICASS,
IFALPA, IPA, NATCA, NBAA, NTSB, RAA, SWAPA, Jeppesen Sanderson Inc.

ZME CGI ATC CoordinationRe:

FOR YOUR INFORMATION

We recently received ASRS reports describing a safety concern that may involve your area of
operational responsibility. We do not have sufficient details to assess either the factual accuracy or
possible gravity of the report. It is our policy to relay the reported information to the appropriate
authority for evaluation and any necessary follow-up. We feel you should be aware of the enclosed
deidentified report.

Aviation Safety Reporting System
P.O. Box 189  |  Moffett Field, CA  |  94035-0189

To properly assess the usefulness of our alert message service, we would appreciate it if
you would  take the time to give us your feedback on the value of the information that we
have provided.  Please contact Dr. Becky Hooey at (408) 541-2854 or email at
becky.l.hooey@nasa.gov.

Becky L. Hooey, Director
NASA Aviation Safety Reporting System

To:

Info:

From:



ACN 2225967 

 DATE / TIME 

Date of Occurrence   202503 
Local Time Of Day   0601 to 1200 

 PLACE 

Locale   CGI.Airport 
State   MO 

 ENVIRONMENT 

Flight Conditions   VMC 

 AIRCRAFT / EQUIPMENT X 

ATC / Advisory ‐ Center   ZME 
Make Model Name   Small Transport, Low Wing, 2 Turboprop Eng 
Operating Under FAR Part   91 

 PERSON 1 

Function ‐ Flight Crew   First Officer 
Function ‐ Flight Crew   Pilot Flying 
ASRS Report Number   2225967 

 EVENTS 

Anomaly  Airspace Violation ‐  All Types 
Anomaly  ATC Issue ‐  All Types 
Anomaly  Deviation / Discrepancy ‐ Procedural ‐  Published 

Material / Policy 
Detector ‐ Person   Flight Crew 

 NARRATIVE 1 

The flight pertaining to this report was scheduled to fly from ZZZ to CGI on Aircraft X at XA:00 local time. The 
flight plan was conducted at nine‐thousand feet with three passengers to be dropped off in CGI. There were 
no discrepancies prior to departure. We departed ZZZ at XA:25 local time to CGI. There was nothing abnormal 
during takeoff or in cruise part of the flight. We were handed off to Memphis Center after Departure Control. 
Approximately thirty miles out, Center was letting us know where the airport was and asking us if we could 
see it. I was focusing on the location of the airport and was looking far out in the distance. Memphis Center 
instructed us to descend to 2500 feet prior to reaching the airport. We were still searching for the airport at 
this point and knew we were getting close. As we were both looking, we were growing closer to the airport 
and did not have its location until we were about to cross over midfield of the airport. Once we had the airport 
insight, we told Memphis Center. We were told that frequency change was approved, and we were cleared for 
the visual for Runway 28. However, we had entered the Class D prior to changing frequencies and handed off 
when we were already inside the Class D airspace. As we talked to Tower, we were instructed to fly eastbound 
and make a 180 to land on the visual for Runway 28. There were no traffic conflicts on this flight. 

 

It appeared that Memphis Center thought that Cape Girardeau was closed because we were instructed that 
we were cleared for the visual Runway 28 and never told us to contact Tower. We were only told frequency 
change approved. I think they thought they were handing us off on a CTAF frequency and not a Tower 
frequency. I looked in the Chart Supplement for the operation for Cape Girardeau Tower’s hours. The Chart 
Supplement had the Tower operating at XB:00 local time. However, I searched online at airnav.com for the 
hours of operation, and it was reported that the Tower was open at XA:00 local time. This event occurred 



around XA:40 local time. If this observation is true, Memphis Center was not in contact with Cape Girardeau 
Tower prior to us entering their airspace.  

 

The action I can take for next time is: Have a situational awareness of how far I am from the airport and be 
ahead of the flight plan. Do not assume a handoff between Center and Tower or even Approach and Tower. 
Have the Tower or CTAF frequency on the standby communications. If the airport is not in sight within a 
certain distance, ask for an instrument approach to help be lined up with the landing runway. 

 SYNOPSIS 

Small transport First Officer reported that the aircraft entered Class D airspace prior to being handed off and 
ZME Center may not have been in contact with CGI Tower during the handoff. The reporter also noted that 
CGI Airport's operation hours may be inaccurate on the Chart Supplement. 

 


